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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the T  Annual report on the business and hirtieth
operations of the Company together with Audited statements of accounts for the year ended 31st 
March, 202 .4

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summarised financial results of the Company are given here under:

    
    Current Previous
   Year Year
   (Rs.’00) (Rs.’00)
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & taxes 67,400(46,352) 
Less: Finance Charges 2,779 3,478
 Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation & Taxes 63,921(49,131) 
Less: Depreciation 110212 
Profit/(Loss) Before Provision & Taxes 63,811(49,343) 
Current Tax  14,2550 
Add/(Less): Deferred Tax (3)19,521 
Income Tax for the previous year —(43) 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 49,553(29,864) 
Transfer to Reserve Fund 9,9110 
Less: Excess Provision written back 2,251 
Balance brought forward from last year 50,42692,320 
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 92,32062456 

COMPANY PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
During the year, the revenue from operations of your Company  by 1 % over the previous  decresed 66
year. The Company has recorded a  of R  lacs for the financial year ended 31st March, loss  s. 29.86
2024

Your Directors are striving for increase in revenue of the Company and thereby increasing 
profitability.      
                      
DIVIDEND
With a view to conserving resources and building up reserves, your Directors do not recommend 
payment of Dividend for the year.

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS
Your directors are hopeful that the performance of the Company will improve in the coming year.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year 2  and the date of this report.023-24

FUTURE OUTLOOK
The general business conditions affecting business are expected to remain stable and company is 
expected to perform well.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from the public covered under Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
No amount  has been transferred to the Reserve Fund.

SHARE CAPITAL
As on 31st March, 2024, the Company’s paid-up Equity Share Capital was Rs. 4,24,73,000/-
comprising of 42,47,300 Equity Shares of Face Value of R . 10/- each and Rs. 34,95,600/- s
received on account of 8,04,800 forfeited shares. There has not been any change in the Equity 
Share Capital of the Company during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. During the 
Financial Year 2023-2024, your Company has neither issued any shares or convertible securities 
nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company 
was increased from 53,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each amounting to Rs.5,35,00,000/- to 
78,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each amounting to Rs.7,85,00,000/-, during the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2024.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has not been any change in the nature of business of the Company during the FY ended 31st 
March, 202 .4

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, 7 Board Meetings were held on 26th May, 
2023, 08th August, 2023,09th August,2023,16th August,2023, 09th November, 2023, 03rd 
January, 2024, 13th February, 2024. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the 
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
Attendance of directors at the Board Meetings [Whether attended (Yes/No)]:

Board    Mr. Anuj Mr. Laxmikant Mr. Anup Ms. Poonam
Meeting  Agarwal Jajodia Chattopadhyay Bathwal
Date  (DIN-02984121) (DIN-00570216) (DIN-10042485) (DIN-10045592)

26 Yes Yes Yes Yesth May,    
2023
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08 August Yes Yes Yes Yesth ,  
2023

09 Yes Yes Yes Yesth August,  
2023
 
16 August Yes Yes Yes Yesth , 
2023

09 November Yes Yes Yes Yesth J , 
2023

03rd Yes Yes Yes Yes January, 
2024

13 Yes Yes Yes Yesth February, 
2024

TOTAL  7 7 7 7

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has an Internal Control System, which has been designed to provide a reasonable 
assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, 
protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring 
reliability of financial reporting. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
At the Annual General meeting held in 2023, the members had appointed M/s. M.K. Kothari & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 0323929E) as the statutory auditors of the 
Company for a period of 3 years upto March 31, 2026 and therefore they continue to hold office.
Pursuant to Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, M/s.   Associates have represented that they are not disqualified and M.K. Kothari &
continue to be eligible to act as the Auditor of the Company. M/s.  Associates have M.K. Kothari &
also confirmed that they have been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI as 
required under Regulation 33(1)(d) of the Listing Regulations.

STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT
There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory 
Auditor in their Report for the year under review.
The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not 
call for any further comments.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
In terms of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors have not reported any instances 
of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS  AND KMP
Mr. Laxmi Kant Jajodia was appointed as an additional director, independent and non-executive,  
on the Board of the Company w.e.f.16.01.2023.
Mr. Anuj Agarwal was appointed as an additional director, promoter and executive, on the Board  
of the Company w.e.f.16.01.2023.
Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay was appointed as an additional director, independent and non- 
executive, on the Board of the Company w.e.f.15.03.2023.
Ms. Poonam Bathwal was appointed as an additional director, professional and non-executive,  
on the Board of the Company w.e.f.15.03.2023.
Mr. Anuj Agarwal was also appointed as the Managing Director of the Company  
w.e.f.25.01.2023.
Mr. Laxmi Kant Jajodia, Mr.Anuj Agarwal, Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay and Ms.Poonam Bathwal  
were appointed as regular directors (from additional directors) at the previous AGM.
Mr. Anuj Agarwal, Director of the Company, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself  
for re-appointment. The Board recommends his reappointment at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.
Ms. Poonam Bathwal is also the whole-time Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the  
Company.
Mr. Jaswinder Singh is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company 
under Section 149(7)of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Directors of the Company meet 
with the criteria of their Independence laid down in Section 149 (6).

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD
The Board has made a formal evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and 
individual directors as required under Section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SITUATION OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
The address of the registered office of the Company was changed w.e.f.15.03.2023 to “Avani 
Signature”, 91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor, Kolkata – 700016.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Since the Company is a Non Banking Finance Company, the disclosure regarding particulars of loans 
given, guarantees given and security provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties 
reffered to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 prescribed under the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and forms a part of this report.
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate. During the year, the Company has not 
entered into any Joint Venture.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND
There is no unpaid/ unclaimed dividend. Hence, the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013 do not apply.

PROCEEDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
There are no proceedings, either filed by the Company or against the Company, pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the National Company Law Tribunal or 
other Courts as on 31st March, 202 .4

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS / 
TRIBUNALS 
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the 
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

SHARES
 a.  BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
  The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

 b.  SWEAT EQUITY
  The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

 c.  BONUS SHARES
  No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

 d.  EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
 The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Statement containing particulars of Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn  and the 
particulars of employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure '1' forming part of this report.
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There was no employee receiving remuneration during the year in excess of that drawn by the 
Managing Director or Whole-time Director and holding by himself or along with his spouse and 
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption, details of 
which are required to be furnished in this report as per the provision of Section 134 (m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO
There were no foreign exchange earning and outgo during the year.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)© and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect 
to Directors' Responsibility Statement, the Directors hereby confirm that:- 

(I)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 202 , the applicable 4
accounting standards, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent  so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company 
for that period;

(iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a 'going concern' basis.
(v) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
(vi) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has a defined Risk Management framework to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate 
various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are 
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

REMUNERATION POLICY
Your Company's Remuneration Policy enumerates the criteria for appointment and remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel on the basis of their 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and other matters as required under 
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(6)

STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED
(CIN: L65991WB1994PLC06680)



BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
Your Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its success and aims to 
attract and maintain a Board which has an appropriate mix of diversity, skills, experience and 
expertise. The Board composition as on the date of this report meets the above objective.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has established a vigil mechanism which monitors through the Audit committee to take 
care of the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also 
provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their 
concern. The Company has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 
reporting issues concerning the interests of company employees and the Company.

POLICY FOR DETERMINING MATERIALITY OF EVENTS/ INFORMATION
The Company's Policy for determination of materiality of events/ information has been designed to 
promote transparency and ensures that the stakeholders are informed regarding the major and material 
events of the Company. The objective of this policy is to put in place a framework for disclosure of 
events and information to the stock exchanges, in line with the requirements prescribed under 
Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations and to ensure that such information is disclosed to the Stock 
Exchanges in a timely and transparent manner.

CODE OF CONDUCT
Details of the Company's Code of Conduct for members of its Board and for Senior Management 
Personnel framed in terms of Regulation 17(5) of the Listing Regulations have been included in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.
All Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of 
conduct for FY 202 -202 . A declaration to this effect signed by the Whole-time Director of the 3 4
Company is included in this Annual Report. 

CODE OF CONDUCT TO REGULATE, MONITOR AND REPORT TRADING BY 
DESIGNATED PERSONS AND CODE OF PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES FOR FAIR 
DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION 
With an aim to guard the interest of general investors, your Company has laid down a 'Code of 
Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by Designated Persons' which is applicable to all the 
Promoters, Directors and such other persons defined as designated persons and to their immediate 
relatives as well. 

Your Company has adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 
Price Sensitive Information. This Code lays down principles and practices to be followed by the 
Company with respect to adequate and timely disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information. 

ANNUAL RETURN
The Annual Return as required under Section 134(3)(a) read with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013, is placed on the Company's website and is available on the weblink: http://www.steptwo.in
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT AND REPORT OF THE 
DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, a separate section titled 'Corporate Governance' has been 
included in this Annual Report, along with the Reports on 'Management Discussion and Analysis' and 
'General Shareholder Information'.

CFO CERTIFICATION
In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II Part B of the Listing Regulations, a certificate from 
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company addressed to the Board of Directors, inter alia, confirming 
the correctness of the financial statements and cash flow statements for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 202 , adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting of matters to the Audit 4
Committee, is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 
Mr. Navneet Jhunjhunwala of M/s N.Jhunjhunwala & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in 
Practice (FCS No.6397, CP No.5184) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith. The same does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board has seven Committees out of which five have been mandatorily constituted in compliance 
with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations and two non-mandatory 
Committees have been constituted. The Board has constituted following Committees to deal with 
matters and to monitor activities falling within their respective terms of reference:-

Mandatory Committees
 - Audit Committee
 - Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
 - Risk Management Committee

Non-mandatory Committees
 - Share Transfer Committee

Details of composition of the above Committees, their terms of reference, number of meetings held 
during the year, attendance therein and other related aspects are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report. There has been no instance where the Board 
has not accepted the recommendations of its Committees.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS AND INDIAN ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS
During the Financial Year 202 , the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 3-24
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central 
Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the preparation of the Financial 
Statements, the Company has also applied the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSEMNT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy 
on prevention, prohibition & redressal of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. During the financial year 202 , 3-24
the Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors wish to convey their gratitude to the Company's clients, Bankers, Business Associates, 
Shareholders, well wishers and employees, for their valued and timely support and advice to your 
company during the year & look forward to their continued support. 
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Regd. Office:
“Avani Signature”
91A/1, Park Street
7th Floor, 
Kolkata – 700 016

Date: .05.20215 4

  For and on behalf of the Board

 Anuj Agarwal Anup Chattopadhyay
 Managing Director Director
 DIN: 02984121 DIN: 10042485
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Annexure “I”

PARTICULARS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION
Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014

Requirements of Rule 5(1) 
     
(I) the ratio of the remuneration of each director 

to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the financial 
year

(ii) the percentage increase in remuneration of 
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year

Executive Directors Ratio

Sri Anuj Agarwal :16.96

Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Directors Ratio

Smt. Poonam Bathwal :11

Non-Executive Independent 
Directors Ratio

Sri Laxmi Kant Jajodia 0
Sri Anup Chattopadhyay 0

Executive Directors Percentage Increase

Sri Anuj Agawal  NIL

Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Directors Percentage Increase

Smt. Poonam Bathwal  NIL

Non-Executive Independent 
Directors Percentage Increase

Sri Laxmi Kant Jajodia  NIL
Sri Anup Chattopadhyay NIL

CFO & CS Percentage Increase 
Sri Basant Kr Agarwal (CFO) NIL
Smt. Poonam Bathwal (CS) NIL
Sri Jaswinder Singh (CFO) NIL

  

Details
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(iii) the percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the 
financial year

(iv) the number of permanent employees on 
the rolls of company (as on 31st March, 
202 )4

(v) average percentile increase already made 
in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration

(vi) affirmation that the remuneration is as per 
the remuneration policy of the company

 0

Average percentile increse in 
salary of non-managerial 
employees

Average percentile increse in 
s a l a r y  o f  m a n a g e r i a l  
employees

 0.00

 0.00

The increment given to each individual 
employee is based on the employees’ 
potential, experience as also their performance 
and contribution to the Company’s progress 
over a period of time. The average increase is 
also an outcome of the Company’s 
performance and its market competitiveness 
as against its peer group companies

The Company affirms that the remuneration 
paid during the year ended 31st March, 202  4
is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 
Company.
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 3

  For and on behalf of the Board

 Anuj Agarwal 
 Managing Director 
 DIN: 02984121 

 Kolkata, th May, 20215 4
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To the Members of
Step Two Corporation Limited
L65991WB1994PLC066080
“Avani Signature”
91A/1, Park Street
Kolkata – 700 016

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Step Two Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Auditor’s responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and  maintenance 
of records based on audit. I have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing 
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards require 
that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of 
records. .

Based on the verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
202  complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 4
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 202 , to the extent applicable, 4
according to the provisions of:

 i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

 ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and Rules made thereunder;

STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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 iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

 Iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made 
thereunder;

 v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities & Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”), to the extent applicable: 

  a) SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011

  b) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992

  c) SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009

  d) SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999

  e) SEBI (Issue and listing of Debt securities) Regulations, 2008

  f) SEBI (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

  g) The SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009

  h) The SEBI (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

 vi) Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable 
to Non-Deposit taking Non–Banking Financial Companies with classification as a 'Loan 
Company'; which are specifically applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the followings:

 a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder (“the Listing 
Regulations”) 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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I further report that

 a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

 b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

 c) None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no 
instance of recording any dissenting member's view in the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there was no other event/action having major bearing on the 
Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 
referred to above.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure–1 which forms an 
integral part of this report.

 For N. JHUNJHUNWALA & ASSOCIATES 
 COMPANY SECRETARIES

 CS NAVNEET JHUNJHUNWALA
UDIN: F006397E000  Proprietor378901
Place:  KOLKATA   FCS-6397
Date: .05.202  C.P. No.: 518415 4
 P.R. Certificate No. 2457/2022
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Annexure – 1

To the Members of
Step Two Corporation Limited
(CIN: )L65991WB1994PLC066080
“Avani Signature”
91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor,
Kolkata – 700 016

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. It is management's responsibility to identify the Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and 
Directions which are applicable to the Company depending upon the industry in which it 
operates and to comply and maintain those records with same in letter and in spirit. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on those records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 
the process and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management's Representation about the compliance of 
Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Directions and happening events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification 
of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

 
 For N. JHUNJHUNWALA & ASSOCIATES 
 COMPANY SECRETARIES

 CS NAVNEET JHUNJHUNWALA
 Proprietor
Place:  KOLKATA   FCS-6397
Date: .05.202  C.P. No.: 518415 4
 P.R. Certificate No. 2457/2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

About Step Two Corporation Limited

Step Two Corporation Limited (‘STCL’) is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company 
(NBFC-ND) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). It is engaged in the business of 
investments and lending

Industry and Economic Scenario

Global economy

In CY 2023, the global economy displayed remarkable resilience and adaptability amidst challenges 
of slowing growth and an increasingly divergent economic environment. A notable recovery in the 
US economy, coupled with the robustness of major emerging markets, had a part to play in this bounce 
back. The faster-than-anticipated decline in inflation – to 6.8% over the year - contributed to an 
optimistic economic outlook. This decrease was facilitated by the easing of supply-side constraints, 
strict monetary policies, stable crude oil prices and moderating commodity prices. Global inflation is 
forecast to decline steadily, from 6.8% in CY 2023 to 5.9% in CY 2024 and 4.5% in CY 2025.

Alongside this, the year was also marked by significant policy shifts and tighter money supply. 
Interest rates also saw an upward trajectory – a response aimed at tempering inflation. Economies 
worldwide demonstrated commendable flexibility, navigating through the complexities of more 
assertive regulations, environmental concerns, and geopolitical tensions. These factors catalysed 
transformations across industries, encouraging a re-evaluation of traditional business practices and 
fostering innovation.

The advent and embracing of digitisation - with rapid advancements in AI, digital finance, and 
sustainable solutions - reshaped how businesses operate and deliver value to customers. The 
digitisation of money and the rise of embedded finance emerged, enhancing the efficiency and 
accessibility of financial services. Financial institutions and businesses across the board took steps to 
reassess and refine their strategies, focusing on resilience and sustainability.

Indian economy

A  gainst a challenging global backdrop, India distinguishes itself as one of the fastest growing major
economics - driven by robust domestic consumption, favourable demographics, and increasing 
disposable incomes. The government’s strategic reforms, hefty investments in infrastructure - both 
physical and digital - and initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ and the Production-Linked Incentive 
(PLI) scheme have been pivotal in enhancing the country’s growth, resilience, and self-reliance.

The Indian economy has grown faster than anticipated, at a rate of 8.2%, in FY 2023-24. This growth 
was marked by a broad-based recovery of industrial sectors, especially manufacturing. The financial 
services sector in India has also acted as a catalyst for economic momentum. As a vital enabler of 
capital flow and investment, this sector has witnessed innovation and growth, particularly in fintech, 
digital banking, and inclusive finance.
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With the RBI’s supportive regulatory framework and initiatives aimed at promoting financial 
inclusion and literacy, the financial services sector showed sustained growth. Although retail 
inflation came down to 4.85% by the end of FY 2023-24 and remained within the RBI’s tolerance 
band of +/-2 percentage points, it remained above the long-term target of 4%. This facilitated a stable 
interest rate environment conducive to long-term investments and spending. The government’s 
approach included focusing on onshoring and friend-shoring production, leveraging AI to maintain 
competitiveness in digital services, and surpassing non-fossil fuel power generation targets.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Non-banking financial company (NBFC) industry overview

According to ICRA, the size of the NBFC industry is estimated to be around ₹46 Trillion of which, the 
Retail NBFC sector (including HFC) contributes 55% - which is around ₹25.3 Trillion as of FY 2023-
24. The industry is driven by digital innovation and a focus on underserved markets and has become a 
linchpin in the financial ecosystem - complementing the traditional banking system by channelling 
essential funds into diverse sectors.

The NBFC industry grew at 14-16%, while the Retail NBFC sector including HFC sector grew at 18-
20% in FY 2023-24. Particularly noteworthy was the pronounced increase in credit appetite from the 
Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector.

According to the MSME Pulse Report (February 2024), economic expansion has catalysed a surge in 
the need for commercial financing. Further shaping the landscape in 2023 was a regulatory 
adjustment concerning the exposures of Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs) to NBFCs. The RBI 
announced an increase in risk weights on SCB exposures to NBFCs by 25 percentage points, over and 
above the risk weight associated with the given external rating, in all cases where the extant risk 
weight as per external rating of NBFCs is below 100%. The industry dynamics, marked by innovative 
financing and regulatory enhancements, position NBFCs as a key catalyst for India’s economic 
growth and financial inclusion.

Financial Performance 

Balance Sheet 

 - Total net fixed assets for FY202  stood at Rs. 0.  lacs compared to Rs.0. lacs in 3-24 69 54 
FY2022-23

 - Net worth stood at Rs. 5  lacs as on 31st March, 202  compared to Rs. 5  lacs 64.59 4 94.45
as on 31st March, 2023, of %. a decrease 10.53

Profit and loss statement 

 - Revenues from operations stood at Rs. 8 5 lacs in FY202  compared to Rs.  4.1 3-24 90.38
lacs in FY2022-23
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 - EBITDA to Rs.  lacs in FY202  compared to Rs.  lacs in increased (46.35) 3-24 67.40
FY202  2-23

 -  after tax was witnessed at Rs.  lacs in FY202  compared to Rs.  Loss (29.86) 3-24 49.55
lacs in FY2022-23

 - Depreciation and amortisation stood at Rs. 0. 1 lacs in FY202  compared to Rs. 2 3-24
0.11 lacs in FY2022-23

Key financial ratio - Significant changes and explanations

 Ratio FY 202 FY 202 Changes   3-24 2-23

Debtors Turnover (Days) - - - 
Inventory Turnover - - - 
Interest Coverage Ratio - - - 
Current Ratio (with
short term borrowings)   690.05 41.59 1559.17%
Debt Equity Ratio   NIL NIL NIL
Operating Profit Margin (%) % % %-59 71 -183.09
(EBIT Margin)
Net Profit Margin (%) / PAT % % %-35 55 -163.63
Return on Net Worth/ % % %-5 8 -162.50
Average Equity
EBITDA Margin % % %-58 71 -181.69
Earnings per share (Rs.)   (0.70) 1.17 -51.13%
Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio   136.68 151.51 -9.79%
Return on Average % % %-9 11 -181.82
capital employed

* Figures for Debtors Turnover (Days), Inventory Turnover and Interest Coverage Ratio have not 
been stated since the Company had Nil Debtors, Inventory and Interest Expense.

Risk Management

The Company aims to operate within an effective risk management framework to actively 
manage all the material risks faced by the organization and make it resilient to shocks in a rapidly 
changing environment. It aims to establish consistent approach in management of risks and 
strives to reach the efficient frontier of risk and return for the organization and its shareholders.

Broad categories of risk faced by the Company are credit, liquidity and interest rate risk. The risk 
management policies are well defined for various risk categories supplemented by periodic 
monitoring through the Board. Central to our approach is the identification, measurement, 
mitigation and reporting of risks, supported by continuous monitoring of Key Risk Indicators to 
ensure organisational objectives are met across all business units.
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Evolving Regulatory Landscape

Over the past few years, financial services as a sector has come under increased scrutiny and 
therefore, greater regulatory supervision. This is especially true for NBFCs, as over the years, the 
sector has undergone considerable evolution in terms of size, complexity and interconnectedness 
within the financial sector. With a view to bridge the regulatory gaps between the Banks and 
NBFCs, NBFCs are now increasingly being subject to regulations and guidelines at par with 
banks.

Opportunities and Threats

Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFCs”) remain one of the most important pillars for 
ushering financial inclusion in India, reaching out to a hitherto under/unserved populace and in 
the process leading to “formalization” of the credit demand.

India continues to stand out as one of the world’s rapidly expanding economies, showcasing a robust 
increase in credit consumption and a growing awareness of digital finance solutions. The 
demographic landscape is evolving, with the younger population and midaged individuals becoming 
increasingly techsavvy, demonstrating a greater openness towards utilising credit services. This shift 
presents a unique opportunity for us to broaden our reach and cater to this digitally inclined customer 
base in FY2025.

The sectors of consumer and MSME financing are experiencing rapid growth, highlighting a 
significant opportunity for our institution to meet the diverse financial needs of these segments. With 
the demand for financing solutions such as pre-owned car loans, digital personal loans, loans against 
property, and business loans on the rise, FY2025 offers a prime opportunity for further diversification 
and growth in these key areas.

Amidst prevailing global economic uncertainties, inflation had escalated beyond customary levels. 
While initial forecasts by economists leaned towards a 25 basis points hike in the repo rate from an 
initial 6.5% at the beginning of Q1 FY24, the Reserve Bank of India opted for maintaining the status 
quo. The global scenario is still uncertain with elevated inflation. This has led to US Fed adopting a 
policy of elevated rates for a much longer period. Any possible impact and adjustments in our 
monetary policy could lead to elevated borrowing costs for longer and potentially decelerate the pace 
of credit expansion in the short term.

The NBFC sector is witnessing the entrance of numerous fin-techs and startups, characterised by 
their capacity for innovation and rapid scalability. This transition from traditional banking to NBFCs 
and alternative lending platforms is creating opportunities for new market entrants to capture 
significant market share, thereby intensifying the competitive landscape.
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Internal control system and their adequacy

The Company has an effective internal control system, commensurate with its size and nature to 
ensure smooth business operation, including assurance of recording all the transaction details, 
ensuring regulatory compliance and protecting the Company assets from any kind of loss or 
misus . It evaluates the adequacy of all internal controls and processes, and ensures strict e
adherence to clearly laid down processes and procedures as well as to the prescribed regulatory 
and legal framework. The Company has further strengthened its internal audit function by 
investing in domain specialists to increase effectiveness of controls. The Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
internal controls.

Fulfilment of the RBI's norms and standards

STCL fulfils norms and standards laid down by the RBI relating to the recognition and 
provisioning of non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity ratio, etc.

Development in human resources

The Company continues to lay emphasis on people, its most valuable resource. In an increasingly 
competitive market for human resources, it seriously focuses on attracting and retaining the right 
talent. It provides equal opportunity to employees to deliver results.

Conclusion

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's 
objectives, predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable 
laws and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward looking statements 
contained in this document due to various risks and uncertainties. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Step Two Corporation Limited (the ‘Company/ STCL’), pursues its long-term corporate goals on 
the bedrock of financial discipline, high ethical standards, transparency, and trust. Enhancing 
shareholders’ value and protecting the interests of all stakeholders is a tradition at STCL. Every 
effort is made to follow the best practices in all functional areas and in discharging the Company’s 
responsibilities towards all the stakeholders and the community at large. Our actions are governed 
by our values and principles, which are reinforced at all levels of the organization. These 
principles have been and will continue to be our guiding force in future. The Corporate 
Governance Policy adopted by the Board acts as a comprehensive framework within which the 
Company, Board of Directors, Board Committees may effectively operate for the benefit of its 
various stakeholders. 
The Company is in compliance with the requirements prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’), as applicable, with respect to Corporate Governance.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KMP

The Board is the focal point and custodian of corporate governance for the Company. The Board 
consists of eminent persons with mix of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors having professional expertise from diverse areas viz., general corporate 
management, risk management, banking, finance, economics, marketing, digitization, analytics and 
other allied fields thus meeting the requirements of the Board diversity. The Independent Directors 
possess experience and expertise in the financial services industry. They provide independent 
judgement, external perspective and objectivity on the issues which are placed before them. The 
Board has the requisite expertise across multiple domains aligned to the growth vision of the 
Company. The Board is responsible for providing strategic guidance to the business and overall 
affairs of the Company, ensuring effective monitoring of management, and avoiding potential 
conflicts of interest. The Board has constituted Committees to deal with matters as may be prescribed 
under applicable laws or directed by the Board from time to time.

As on 31st March, 2024, the Board comprises One Executive Director and Three Non-Executive 
Directors. The executive director is Mr.Anuj Agarwal. Independent Non-executive Directors are 
Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia and Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay, professional non-executive director is 
Ms.Poonam Bathwal. 

Ms.Poonam Bathwal is also the Secretary and compliance officer of the Company.

Mr.Jaswinder Singh is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company. The composition of the 
Board is in conformity with the listing requirements.
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The Board reviews and approves strategy and oversees the actions and results of management to 
ensure that the long term objectives of enhancing stakeholder value are met.

There were no materially relevant pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive 
Directors vis-à-vis the Company during the year.

2.  BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on the agenda. 
Additional meetings are held whenever necessary. The gap between any two meetings is less than four 
months. The Board of Directors formulates the business and operational policies and decides on 
strategic issues concerning the Company. 

During the FY 2023-2024, the Board met 7 times on: 26th May, 2023, 08th August, 2023, 09  th

August,2023, 16  August,2023, 09th November, 2023, 03rd January, 2024, 13th February, 2024. th

  
The composition of the Board is in conformity with the listing regulations. The composition of the 
Board, number of Board Meetings held, attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and last 
Annual General Meeting and the number of Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of 
Committees in other Companies in respect of each Director as on March 31, 2024 is given here-in 
below:

Name of Director Type      Executive/          Number of    Number of   Whether
  Non-executive meetings other attended
   attended      Directorships*  last AGM
Mr. Anuj Agarwal Promoter Executive    Nil Yes7
(DIN- 02984121)   
Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia Independent Non-executive  Nil Yes7
(DIN- 00570216) 
Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay Independent Non-executive  Nil Yes7
(DIN- 10042485) 
Ms. Poonam Bathwal Professional Non-executive  Nil Yes7
(DIN- 10045592)

*    Directorship held in Public Limited Company.
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  Directorships  Committee Positions in
    Listed & Unlisted public
    Limited companies

Name of Director In listed In unlisted In private As Chairman As Member
 companies public limited
  companies companies 

   
Mr. Anuj Agarwal 1 - 5 - 4
(DIN-02984121)

Mr. Laxmi Kant Jajodia 1 -  - 1 4 
(DIN- 00570216) 

Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay 1   - 4- - 
(DIN- 10042485) 

Ms. Poonam Bathwal 1 - - - 4
(DIN- 10045592)  

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the committees on which a director can serve, 
all public limited companies, whether listed or not, have been included and all other companies 
including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered under section 8 
of the Companies Act, 2013 section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been excluded. Only  
audit committee and stakeholders relationship committee are considered for the purpose of 
reckoning committee positions.

Meeting of Independent Directors:

Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedule IV of the Act requires the Independent Directors of 
the Company to hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of non-independent 
directors and members of the management. The Independent Directors of the Company met on 
March 27, 202 , pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations.4

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

None of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se.

3.  INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS' RE-APPOINTMENT / APPOINTMENT

 Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia was appointed as an additional director, independent and non-
executive, on the Board of the Company w.e.f.16.01.2023.
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  Mr. Anuj Agarwal was appointed as an additional director, promoter and executive, on the Board 

of the Company w.e.f.16.01.2023.

  Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay was appointed as an additional director, independent and non-

executive, on the Board of the Company w.e.f.15.03.2023.

  Ms. Poonam Bathwal was appointed as an additional director, professional and non-executive, on 

the Board of the Company w.e.f.15.03.2023.

  Mr. Anuj Agarwal was also appointed as the Managing Director of the Company 

w.e.f.25.01.2023.

  Mr. Laxmi Kant Jajodia, Mr.Anuj Agarwal, Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay and Ms.Poonam Bathwal 

were appointed as regular directors (from additional directors) at the previous AGM.

  Mr. Anuj Agarwal, Director of the Company, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself 

for re-appointment. The Board recommends his reappointment at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting.

  Mr. Anuj Agarwal (37 years) possesses immense knowledge in the fields of Investment, Banking 

and retail financing. His rich experience in the corporate world is an asset for the Company and 

would surely go a long way in terms of value addition for the Company.

 He does not hold directorship in any public limited company apart from Step Two Corporation 

Ltd.

4.  AUDIT COMMITTEE

a. Terms of reference:

 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 

177 of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and RBI Scale Based Regulation. The terms of the 

reference broadly include:

• Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial  

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

• Recommend the appointment, replacement or removal, remuneration and terms of appointment  

of auditors of the Company;

• Approve rendering of services by the Statutory Auditors other than those expressly barred under  

Section 144 of Act and remuneration for the same;
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• Reviewing and examination, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's   

report thereon and the CEO & CFO Certificate as per Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations 

before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

− Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the  

Board’s Report in terms of Section 134(3)© of the Act;

− Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

− Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by management; 

− Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

− Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

− Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 

− Qualifications/ modified opinion in the draft audit report. 

• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial results before submission to the Board  

for approval and secure the certificate from CEO and CFO in terms of Regulation 33(2)(a) of 

SEBI Listing Regulations; 

• Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an  

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ notice and the report submitted 

by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 

making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

• Reviewing and examination of quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring  

agency, if applicable and annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in 

the offer document/prospectus/notice;

• Reviewing and monitoring independence and performance of statutory and Internal Auditors,  

effectiveness of audit process and adequacy of the internal control systems; any concerns in this 

regard may be flagged by the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors and concerned Senior 

Supervisory Manager (SSM)/Regional Office (RO) of RBI;

• Approve the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Chief Internal Auditor and  

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing, and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 

coverage and frequency, scope, functioning and methodology of internal audit;
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• Discussion with Internal Auditors and the Management of any significant findings, status of  

previous audit recommendations and follow up there on;

• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where  

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 

and reporting the matter to the Board;

• Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of  

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

• Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,  

shareholders (in case of non- payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

• Review the functioning of the Whistle Blower/ Vigil Mechanism; 

• Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-Time Finance Director or any other person  

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background etc. of the candidate;

• Review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the Company in the  

subsidiary exceeding H100 croreor 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments;

• Review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

• Review Management letters/letters of internal control weakness issued by the Statutory Auditors; 

• Review the Internal Audit Report relating to internal control weakness; 

• Carry out such other business as may be required by applicable law or considered appropriate in  

view of the general terms of reference and the purpose of the Audit Committee;

• Approve and review related party transactions of the Company in accordance with the Related  

Party Transactions Policy of the Company;

• Approve a related party transaction to which the subsidiary of the Company is a party but the  

Company is not a party, provided if the value of such transaction whether entered into individually 

or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds ten per cent of the 

annual standalone turnover, as per the last audited financial statements of the subsidiary; 

• Grant omnibus approval for entering into related party transactions in accordance with applicable  

laws and as per the policy adopted by the Board;

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
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• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

• Investigate into any matter in relation to the items within the purview of this Charter or referred to  

it by the Board or auditor of the Company and for this purpose, shall have full access to 

information contained in the books, records, facilities, personnel of the Company and External 

professional consultants and their advice, if necessary;

• Comply with the going concern assumptions; 

• Compliance with accounting standards; 

• Appoint registered valuers; 

• Consider and comment on rationale, cost benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,  

demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders;

• Review of statement of deviation(s) or variation; 

• Review and take note of the statement indicating deviation/ variation report with respect to  

utilization of issue proceeds of listed non-convertible securities on quarterly basis;

• Ensuring information system audit of the internal systems and processes are conducted every year  

to assess operational risk faced by the NBFCs;

• Ageing analysis of entries pending reconciliation with outsourced vendors shall be placed before  

the Committee;

• Monitoring system of internal audit of all outsourced activities; 

• Any adjustments to the Expected Credit Loss model output (i.e. a management overlay) should be  

approved by the Audit Committee and its rationale and basis should be clearly documented;

• Reviewing, approving and monitoring the code of ethics of the Company for senior  

management/directors;

• Reviewing of the compliance under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015  

including any amendments thereto and verify the adequacy of internal control systems under the 

said Regulations on an annual basis;

• Any other matter as delegated by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. 

b. Composition:

As on 31st March, 2024, the Audit Committee comprised One Promoter Executive Director and 
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Three Non-Executive Directors, two of whom are Independent. The Committee comprises Mr.Anuj 

Agarwal, Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia, Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay and Ms.Poonam Bathwal. The 

Committee is chaired by Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay, Independent Non executive Director. All members 

of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial management expertise.

During the year, the Committee met 4 times on: 26th May, 2023, 08th August, 2023, 09th 

November, 2023 and 13th February, 2024.
c. Meetings and attendance:

Name of the Director No. of Meetings Attended    

Mr. Anuj Agarwal     4

Mr. Laxmikant Jajodia     4

Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay     4

Ms. Poonam Bathwal     4

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP  COMMITTEE

a. Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee are in accordance with the 

provisions of Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The terms of the reference broadly include:

• Redress and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints  

related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, nonreceipt of declared  

dividends, issue of new/ duplicate certificates or allotment letters, general meetings, etc;

• Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

• Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various  

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

• Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of  
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unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 

notices by the shareholders of the Company;

• Review the internal audit report submitted by Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company  

pursuant to SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20, 2018, on 

‘strengthening the Guidelines and Raising Industry standards for RTA, Issuer Companies and 

Banker to an issue’ including any amendments thereto.

• Effect Dematerialisation and Rematerialisation of shares of the Company; 

• Such other matters as per the directions of the Board of Directors of the Company which may be  

considered necessary in relation to shareholders and investors of the Company.

b. Composition:

 As on 31st March, 2024, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of STCL consists of One 

Executive Director and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors. The constitution and 

composition of the Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary and has been appointed as the Compliance Officer of 

the Committee.

c. Meetings and attendance: 
 During the year, the committee met 1 time on 26th May, 2023

 Name of the Director No. of Meeting Attended    

Mr. Anuj Agarwal     1

Mr. Laxmikant Jajodia     1

Mr. Anup Chattopadhyay     1

No investor compliant was received during the year and none was pending unresolved as on 31st 

March, 202 . 4

 6.  NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a. Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 178 of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and RBI Scale Based Regulation. The 

terms of reference broadly include:
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Review of matters by the Committee:

• Carry out evaluation of performance of all the directors of the Company; 

• Review overall compensation philosophy and framework of the Company; 

• Review outcome of the annual performance appraisal of the employees of the Company; 

• Conduct annual review of the Committee’s performance and effectiveness at the Board level; 

• Examine and ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of the directors of the Company; 

• To ensure that the Committee works in close co-ordination with Risk Management Committee of  

the Company to achieve effective alignment between compensation and risks;

• The Committee shall ensure that there is no conflict of interest specifically for Independent  

Directors being on the Board of another NBFC at the same time;

• To ensure that compensation levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of the Company  

and the need to maintain adequate capital based on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment 

Process (ICAAP);

b. Composition:

As on 31st March, 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of STCL consists of One 

Executive Director and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors. The constitution and 

composition of the Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations. The 

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary and has been appointed as the Compliance Officer of the 

Committee.

c. Meetings and attendance:
During the year, the Committee met 1 time on: 26th May, 2023 

Name of the Director No. of Meeting Attended     

  Mr. Anuj Agarwal 1        

  Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia 1       

  Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay  1       
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are in accordance with the provisions of 
SEBI Listing Regulations and RBI Scale Based Regulation. The terms of reference broadly include:

• Setting policies and guidelines for risk identification, measurement, management, monitoring and 
reporting;
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• Ensuring that risk management processes (including people, systems, operations, limits, controls 
and governance) satisfy the company’s policy and compliance with regulatory guidelines;

• Reviewing and approving risk limits, strategies and risk appetite;

• Ensuring robustness of financial or scoring models, and the effectiveness of all systems used to 
calculate Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 risks;

• Recommend to the Board for its approval / review, risk related policies, strategy and risk appetite;

• Review any major development, internal and external, and their impact on the portfolio and as a 
whole on the company;

• Ensuring compliance with applicable regulatory requirements methodology, systems and data;

• Review of non-compliance w.r.t. internal process and regulatory guidelines, limit breaches, audit / 
regulatory findings, indicators, and policy exceptions with respect to Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 risks;

• Reviewing the results of and progress in implementation of the decisions made in previous 
meetings;

• Administering the material outsourcing and adherence thereof with the outsourcing policy and seek 
reports on the implementation or exceptions to the same;

• Laying down appropriate approval authorities and limits for outsourcing depending on risks and 
materiality;

• To review outsourcing strategies and arrangements for their continued relevance, central record of 
all material outsourcing activities and review/assessment reports of such activities on half yearly 
basis and safety and soundness and identify new material outsourcing risks as they arise;

• To review and measure risks emanating from Information Technology and cyber threats, due to 
increased adoption of technology and digitization;

• The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be 
subject to review by the Risk Management Committee;

• The Committee shall meet the Chief Risk Officer without the presence of the Managing Director at 
least on a quarterly basis;

• Approve exceptions/deviations from Risk Management Policy;

• To review the outcome of the risk assessment exercise carried out by the risk management team for 
Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing in terms of RBI KYC Directions, 2016;

• To work in close coordination with Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company to 
achieve effective alignment between compensation and risks;

• To carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any 
statutory notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable;

b. Composition:
As on 31st March, 2024, the Committee of STCL consists of One Executive Risk Management 
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Director and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors. The constitution and composition of the 
Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations. The Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary and has been appointed as the Compliance Officer of the Committee.

c. Meetings and attendance:
During the year, the Committee met 2 times on: 26th May, 2023 and 09th November, 2023

Name of the Director No. of Meeting Attended     

  Mr. Anuj Agarwal 2        

  Mr.Laxmi Kant Jajodia 2       

  Mr.Anup Chattopadhyay  2       
       

8.  POLICIES, CODE OF CONDUCT AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Code of Conduct:

The Listing Regulations require listed companies to lay down a code of conduct for directors and 

senior management, incorporating duties of directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. 

Accordingly, the Company has a Board approved code of conduct for all Board members and 

Senior Management of the Company. The said code has been placed on the Company's website 

https://www.steptwo.in.

All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the 

code for the year ended 31 March 202 . A declaration to this effect signed by the Whole time 4

Director is given elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism Framework/Whistle Blower Mechanism:

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Company has a Board 

approved whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism to enable directors and employees to report to 

the Management their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation 

of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy.

This mechanism provides safeguards against victimisation of directors/employees who avail of the 

mechanism and provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional 

cases.

The whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism has been appropriately communicated to the 

employees within the organisation and has been put on the Company's website 

https://www.steptwo.in.
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As on March 31, 202 , no complaint has been received by the Company from any directors or 4

employees of the Company with respect to any wrongdoings that may have an adverse impact on 

the Company's image or financials of the Company.

CEO/CFO certification

The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other 

matters as required under the Listing Regulations.

Auditors' certificate on corporate governance

The Company has obtained a certificate from its statutory auditors regarding compliance with the 

provisions relating to corporate governance laid down in the Listing Regulations.

This certificate is annexed to the Directors' Report.

Compliances regarding insider trading

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a Board 

approved code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders ('code of conduct') 

and a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 

Information ('code of fair disclosure'). The code of conduct and code of fair disclosure framed by 

the Company have helped in ensuring compliance with the requirements.

Compliance of mandatory requirements under the Listing Regulations

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.

Modified opinion in the audit report

The Company confirms that its financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion.

Separate posts of Whole-time Director/CFO/Secretary

The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Whole-time Director, Chief Financial 

Officer and Company Secretary.

Reporting of internal auditor

The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 no fraud was reported by auditors of the 

Company to the Audit Committee during FY 202 .3-24

A Cash Flow Statement for FY 202   is attached to the Balance Sheet.3-24

The Company has a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. There was no case of 

sexual harassment reported during FY 202 .3-24

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by 
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name and amount: During the Financial Year 202 , the Company has not provided any loans 3-24

and/or advances to firms/ companies in which Directors are interested.

Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:  Since the Company does 

not deal in any commodities, the same has been not been discussed in this Report.

The Company has formulated an Archival Policy for ensuring compliance with the provisions 

under Regulation 30(8) of the Regulations for protection, maintenance and archival of the Events 

or Information disclosed to the stock exchange(s) which are also hosted on its website.

The Board of Directors of the company have laid down a code of conduct for all Board members 

and Senior Management personnel of the Company in compliance with Regulation 17(5) of The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

The Company has a Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors in compliance with 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has in place a Policy on Determination of Materiality of Event or Information in 

pursuance of the requirements of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a policy on materiality of Related Party 

Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions. The policy is in line with requirement 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and The 

Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy in compliance with Section 134 (3) (n) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(9)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Company to develop and implement a Risk 

Management Policy / Plan and to lay down risk assessment and minimisation procedures.

Secretarial standards of ICSI

Pursuant to the approval from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI) has, on 14 June 2018, revised the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of 

the Board of Directors (SS–1) and General Meetings (SS–2) effective from 1 October 201 .7

The Company is compliant with the same.
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9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Time and location of last three Annual General Meetings 

 Year Date Time  Location

 202       10:00  A.M. 21, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 5th Floor, Suite No.507,1 21.09.2021
     Kolkata  - 700 001

 202      10:00  A.M. 21, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 5th Floor, Suite No.507,2 28.09.2022
     Kolkata  - 700 001 

 202       10:00  A.M. ,3 18.09.2023 “Avani Signature”, 91A/1, Park Street
     Kolkata  - 700 016

Details of special resolution(s) passed at the last three years' annual general meetings (AGM) 

and postal ballot:

I.  Special resolutions passed at the previous three annual general meetings:

At the 27th AGM held on 21 September, 2021, no special resolution was passed.

At the 28th AGM held on 28 September, 2022, no special resolution was passed.

At the 2 th AGM held on 8 September, 202 , no special resolution was passed.9 1 3

At the EGM held on 02 February, 2024, the following Special Resolutions were passed:

- Adoption of new set of Memorandum of Association of the Company as per Companies Act, 
2013.

- Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company as per Companies Act, 2013.

- Increase in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment in 
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

- Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential Basis to entities belonging to the Promoter and Non-
Promoter Categories.

II.  No special resolution was passed through postal ballot during FY 202 -202 .3 4

III.  No special resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot at this annual 

general meeting.
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10.  DISCLOSURE

A summary statement of transactions with related parties was placed periodically before the audit 

committee during the year. During the year under review there were no materially significant 

related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 

large. Suitable disclosures have been made in the financial statements, together with the 

management's explanation in the event of any treatment being different from that prescribed in 

accounting standards.

Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by 

Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, 

during the last Three years: None. 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: In the preparation of financial statements, the company has 

followed the treatment as prescribed in the Accounting Standards.

Risk Management: The company has a defined Risk Management framework. The company has 

laid down procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and minimization 

procedures.

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc.: There were no proceeds from 

public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc. during the financial year. 

1 .  1 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company publishes quarterly, half-yearly and annual results in Financial Express and Arthik 

Lipi which are national and local dailies. The Company results and official news releases are 

displayed on the Company's website http://www.steptwo.in. The Company also makes 

presentations to international and national institutional investors and analysts, which are also put 

up on its website.

1   2 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A.  Annual General Meeting

Date    th September, 20224 4

Time -  10:00 A.M

Venue-  “Avani Signature” 91A/1, Park Street, Kolkata - 700 016

B.  Financial Calender 1st April to 31st March Provisional : Will be published during

Result for Quarter ending June 30, 202    :  On or before 14th August, 2024 4
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Result for Quarter ending September 30, 202    : On or before 14th November, 2024 4

Result for Quarter ending December 31, 202    :  On or before 14th February, 2024 5

Result for Year ending March 31, 202    :  On or before 30th May, 2025 5

C. B ook Closure

The Register of members and Share Transfer Book will remain closed from th day of 18

September, 202  to h day of September, 202  (both days inclusive) on account of Annual 4 24t 4

General Meeting.

D. Dividend

No dividend is recommended for the year.

E.  Listing at Stock Exchange

 (i) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd. (Stock Code 29182)

 (ii)  The Stock Exchange, Mumbai   (Stock Code 531509)

The Company has paid the Listing Fees for the year 202 -202  to all stock exchanges.3 4

F.   ISIN Number: INE623D01015

G.   Depository Connectivity: NSDL and CDSL

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the Financial Year(s) 202 -2  and 202 -2  has been paid to 3 4 4 5

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL).

H.  STOCK MARKET DATA

Monthly highs and lows of Step Two Corporation Ltd. share price (Rs.) during 202 -202 .3 4

Month BSE Closing BSE Sensex  

    High Low

April'202      3 16.25 14.68 61112
May'202      3 16.40 13.80 62622

June'202      3 18.15 14.16 64718

July'202       3 16.49 13.56 66527
Aug'202        3 18.90 14.41 64831

Sep'202        3 20.89 17.88 65828
Oct'202       3 22.05 18.50 63875

Nov'202      3 22.29 18.77 66988

Dec'202      3 22.22 18.34 72240
Jan'202       4 51.98 22.33 71752
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Feb'202      4 46.16 39.43 72500
Mar'202       4 42.84 33.44 73651

1  3 REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS

Name Address                                

Niche Technologies (P) Ltd.          3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor,

(For Physical and Demat Shares)        Room No. 7A & 7 B, Kolkata - 700017

    Ph No. (033) 2280-6616/6617

    e-mail: nichetechpl@nichtechpl.com

Share Transfer System

As per Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, Physical transfer of shares has been dispensed with and securities 
of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. 
Effective from 24th January, 2022, SEBI has mandated for Listed Companies to issue shares in 
demat form only, after processing the requests in prescribed Form ISR-4 received for issue of 
duplicate certificate, transmission, transposition, renewal/ exchange of share certificate, 
endorsement, sub-division/ splitting of certificate, consolidation of certificates, claim from 
Unclaimed Suspense Account, etc. The RTA will after processing such requests issue a Letter of 
Confirmation to the concerned shareholder for submission to DP within 120 days from the date of 
issue of Letter of Confirmation for dematerialistion of shares. In case shareholder fails to submit 
the demat request within the aforesaid period, the RTA shall credit the shares to Suspense Escrow 
Demat Account of the Company. Form ISR-4 is available on the website of the Company at: 
www.steptwo.in

The Board has delegated the authority for approving transfer, transmission, etc. of the Company's 
securities to its Share Transfer Committee. The Committee meets as and when required to, inter 
alia, consider the issue of duplicate share certificates (letter of confirmation with effect from 24th 
January, 2022) and attend to Shareholders' grievances, etc. A summary of the transfer, 
transmissions, dematerialisation, rematerialisation, etc. is placed before the Committee at every 
meeting. There are no legal cases relating to transfer/ transmission of shares.

As required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations,  the Company had obtained for 
the year under review a certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice, confirming due 
compliance of share transfer formalities and also filed a copy of the said certificate with the stock 
exchanges.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
As stipulated under Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, as 
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amended, a Company Secretary in Practice carries out the Share Capital Audit to reconcile the 
total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is 
carried out in every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to stock exchanges where the 
Company's shares are listed and is also placed before the Board of Directors. No discrepancies 
were noticed during these audits.

1 . 4 COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. Poonam Bathwal is presently acting as the compliance officer in accordance with the 
provisions of the Listing Regulations. Her contact details are as under:
Address:” Avani Signature”, 91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor, Kolkata – 700016

Tel No.:  033-66289111
E-mail :  admin@steptwo.in

1 .      5 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.03.2024
No. of Equity Shares No. of Share  % of Shares No. of Shares % of Shares 
Held holders holders held holding      
         1  to        500  1,03, 2.44 3 888 75.7033 646 0
     501  to      1000  14   2.5 12.3615 1,09,554 5794
   1001  to      5000   86 7.3316 1,96,699 4.6312
   5001  to    10000  19 3.31.6198 1,42,779 616
 10001  to    50000  3  16.1 2.6428 6,97,745 4280
 50001  to  100000    1 0.0853 64,300 1.5139
100001  and  above   63 0.2558 29,32,577 9.0457

Totals    11 3 100.000 42,47,300 100.0007

1 .   6 SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2024
Category No. of Share held % of Share holding    
Indian Promoters  2830520 66.64
Indian Public including corporate bodies 1416780 33.36
    4247300 100.00

1 .  7 DEMATERLIZATION OF SHARES

3801894 4 52 shares have been dematerialized up to 31.03.202  which is 89. % percent of the total 
shares of the Company. 
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1 . BREAK-UP OF SHARES IN PHYSICAL AND DEMAT SEGMENT (As on 31.03.202 )8 4

Segment  No. of  % to total No. of Shares  % to total 
   Shareholders Shareholders  held Shares
Physical  3    10.57 29.14 445406 49
Demat  8    89.68 70.86 3801894 52

Total   12  100.00 4247300 100.0025

Transfer of Unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

In terms of the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, 
dividends which remain unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to 
the unpaid dividend account have to be statutorily transferred by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government. There is no 
amount of unclaimed dividend with the Company.

Unclaimed Shares 

In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Part F of the 
Listing Regulations, unclaimed shares to be transferred to the suspense account. There are no 
such unclaimed shares with the Company.

Transfer of shares in respect of which dividend remained unclaimed/ unpaid for seven 
consecutive years or more

Pursuant to provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
('IEPF Rules') and amendments made thereto, the Equity Shares, in respect of which dividend has 
not been claimed or encashed by the Members for seven or more consecutive years, are liable to 
be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund ('IEPF'). Upon 
transfer of such shares, all benefits, viz. bonus, dividend etc., if any, accruing on such shares shall 
also be credited to the IEPF and the voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the 
rightful owner claims the shares. There is no such case with the Company.

Credit Ratings

The Company has noy obtained any credit rating.

Foreign currency exposure and its hedging

The Company has no foreign exchange exposure in its books.

STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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1 . 9 OUTSTANDING GDRs/ADRs/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE 
INSTRUMENTS,  CONVERSION DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY

 Not applicable as the Company has not issued any such instruments.

20.  ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

 REGISTERED OFFICE:
 Step Two Corporation Limited
 “Avani Signature”, 
 91A/1, Park Street, 7th Floor,
 Kolkata – 700016
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO 
THE MEMBERS OF 
STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Step Two 
Corporation Limited for the year ended 31st March, 202 , as stipulated in regulations 17, 17A, 18, 4
19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of regulation 46 
and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as "SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015").

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Company's 
Management. Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression 
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we 
certify that the Company has complied to the extent applicable with the conditions of corporate 
governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

             For  & AssociatesM. K. Kothari

                   Chartered  Accountants

      Firm Registration Number: 0323929E

Place : Kolkata     ( ) CA Manish Kumar Kothari

Date : The th day of May, 202                                 (Partner)15 4  

                   Membership Number: 059513
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

I, , Chief Financial Officer, certify to the Board that:Jaswinder Singh

a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31st 
March' 202  and that to the best of my knowledge and belief :4

 i. These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading ;

 ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and 
comply with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during 
the year ended 31st March'202  are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of 4
conduct.

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and I have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps they have taken or propose to 
take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

 i. Significant changes in internal control during the year;

 ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and

 iii. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
company's internal control system.

      For Step Two Corporation Limited

Place : Kolkata      Jaswinder Singh

Date : The th day of May, 202 Chief Financial Officer15 4              
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF
THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

To 
The Members of 
Step Two Corporation Limited

I, Anuj Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company declare that all Board Members and Senior 
Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 
31st March, 202 .4

Place : Kolkata             
Date .202        15.05 4 Anuj Agarwal
       Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To 

The Members of 

STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of STEP TWO CORPORATION 
LIMITED which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
the ''financial statements'').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and 
loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the financial statements
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Information other than the financial statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company's board of directors  responsible for the preparation of the other information. The is
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexure to 
Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report there on.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information materially inconsistent with is 
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 

process.

STEP TWO CORPORATION LIMITED
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statement

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economics decision of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statement

A. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in 

place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
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statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

B. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

C. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, The order is applicable to the company for the year under audit as given in the 
“Annexure- A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

 a. e have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best W
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 b. n  our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the I
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 c. he balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt T  
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

 d. n our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting I  
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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 e. n the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st O
March 202  taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 4
disqualified as on 31st March 202  from being appointed as a director in terms of 4
Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

 f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in 'Annexure '.B

 g.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as ammended:

 h With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

 i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position; 

 ii. the Company did not have any long term contract including derivatives 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

 iii. there was no amount which is required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

 iv. ) the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, a
no funds have (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

  ) the management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, b
no funds have (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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 ) Based on  audit procedures  considered reasonable and  c the that have been
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused to believe that the representations under sub clause (I)and (ii) of Rule 
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

 v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. As such 
provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all the 
transactions recorded in the software. Further during the course of our audit, we 
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 applicable from April 1, 
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of such checks as 

we considered appropriate was carried out by us during the course of the audit of the 

Company, our report on the matters specified under the Para 3(A) and 3(C) of Non - Banking 

Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is as follows:

I) The Company is engaged in the business of Non- Banking Financial Institution as defined in  

section 45-IA of the RBI Act. It has obtained Certificate of Registration (CoR) from Reserve 

Bank of India and the Certificate No. is 05.02614 dated 4th June, 1998 (being original date 

of registration).

ii) The Financial asset/income pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows:

     % of Financial Assets to Total Assets: 95.14%

     % of Financial Income to Total Income: 100%
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   In view of the above ratios, the Company is entitled to continue to hold Certificate of 

Registration issued by the Reserve Bank of India as on 31st March, 2024.

 iii) The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year.

 iv) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, 

accounting standards, assets classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as 

applicable to it in terms of Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial 

Company -Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

  v) The Company is a Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC as defined in 

Non-Banking Financial Company – Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking 

Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:

     (a) The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the Reserve Bank of 

India in form DNBS 03, has been correctly arrived at and such ratio is in compliance with the 

minimum CRAR prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India;

 vi) The Company has not been classified as NBFC Micro Finance Institution (MFI) as defined 

in the Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking 

Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

                  for M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
       Chartered Accountants
           FRN No. 323929E
Place : Kolkata              (CA Manish Kumar Kothari)
Date : .05.202                    Partner15 4
       Membership No. 059513
             UDIN: 24059513BKCZNK8741
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date to the Members of The Step Two Corporation Limited on financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March, 2024)

1. a. A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including  
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

   B) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have  

any Intangible Assets. As such, the provisions of this clause are not applicable.

 b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Property, Plant and  
equipment’s have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No  
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

  c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not hold any 
immoveable property. As such, the provisions of this clause are not applicable.

  d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, 
plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the  
year.

  e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the  
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property  
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

2. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any    
Inventory. As such, the provisions of this clause are not applicable.

    
  b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our  

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working  
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security 
of current assets.

3. According the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, the company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or 
security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The company has 
granted loans during the year, details of the loan is stated in sub-clause (a) below:

a. The company being a NBFC registered under the provisions of RBI Act, 1934, its principal 
business is to give loans. As such the provisions of the clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not 
applicable to it.
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures conducted by us, we a e of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans r
given are, prima facie, not pre-judicial to the interest of the company.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, there is no stipulation 
of repayment of principal and payment of interest as the loans are repayable on demand. So, 
we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than 
ninety days in respect of loans given.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company has granted any loans and 
advances in the nature of loans that are repayable on demand:

  All Parties Promoters Related

   (Including Parties

   Directors)

 Aggregate amount of loan/advance in the Rs. 5,00,000/- - -

 nature of loans - payable on demand (A)

 Percentage of Loan/Advances in nature of 

 loans to the total Loans 100% - -

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any 
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or security as specified 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, since its principal business is to 
give loans, provisions of Section 186 in respect of Loans is not applicable to the company 
and so not commented upon.

5. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies 
Act and the rules made there under, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of 
the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

6. As informed to us, to maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities 
carried on by company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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7. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services 
Tax('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, 
Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the 
appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, 
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and 
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, 
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of 
Customs, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited 
by the Company on account of disputes.

8. There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have 
been surrendered or disclosed in income during the year in the tax assessment under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

9. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company does not have any loans or 
borrowings. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

 c. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)© of the Order is not 
applicable.

 d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-
term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

 e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the financial statement of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries 
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is 
not applicable.
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 f. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by 
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 
clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

10. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by 
us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 

the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

11. a. Based on the examination of the books and records of the company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality 
outlined in the Standards of Auditing, we report that no fraud by the company or on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 

(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in form 

ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

with Central Government.

 c.According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistleblower complaints 

were received during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xi)© is not applicable.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

13.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the 
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards.

14. a. According to the information given to us, the company has an internal audit system that 
commensurate with the size and nature of the organization.

 b. The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit have been considered by us.
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1 . In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 5
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

1 . a. The Company is registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 6
vide registration number 05.02614 dated 04.06.1998.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a 

valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

 c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)© of the Order is not 

applicable.

 d. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, 

the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are 

not applicable.

1 . According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not 7
incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

1 . There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into 8
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

1 . According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 9
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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2 . According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to 0
undertake any corporate social responsibility activities as per section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable.

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has 
been included in the report.

      for M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
       Chartered Accountants
 23929E          FRN No. 3
Place : Kolkata              (CA Manish Kumar Kothari)
Date : .05.202                    Partner15 4
 059513      Membership No. 
             UDIN: 24059513BKCZNK8741
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF 
EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STEP TWO 
CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Step Two Corporation 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India”.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on , “the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

      for M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
       Chartered Accountants
 23929E          FRN No. 3
Place : Kolkata             (CA Manish Kumar Kothari)
Date : .05.202                    Partner15 4
 059513      Membership No. 
             UDIN: 24059513BKCZNK8741
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

(Amount in Rs.‘00)

I ASSETS
 FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Cash & Cash Equivalents 4  28,785 27,372
 Receivables  
 (I) Trade Receivables    5 4,256 81,661
 Loans    6 5,000 85,612
 Investments 7  4,98,306 —

 Other Financial Assets 8   1,560 1,560 4,0
 NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Current Tax Assets (Net) 9    7,229 8,889
 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10    19,559 38
 Property, Plant & Equipment
     & Intangible Assets 11    690 541
 Other Non-Financial Assets 12    — 3,545
   Total   5,65,389 6,09,218
II LIABILITIES& EQUITY
 LIABILITIES
 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 Other Financial Liabilities 13    790 295
 NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14    — 14,255
 Provisions 15    13 214
  EQUITY
 Equity Share Capital 16  4,59,686 4,59,686
 Other Equity 17  1,   04,900 1,34,767
   Total    5,65,389 6,09,218
General Information & Significant  1 - 3
Accounting policies  
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts
As per our Report of even date
For, M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants     
FRN No. 0323929E
( )MANISH KUMAR KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No. 059513
Date : 15.05.2024
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 24059513BKCZNK8741

As on
31.03.2024Note No.

For & on Behalf of the Board
 (DIN-02984121)Anuj Agarwal

 (DIN-10042485)Anup Chattopadhyay
Sd/-

Director

As on
31.03.2023

( )62

Poonam Bathwal
Sd/-

Company Secretary
Jaswinder Singh

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

(Amount in Rs.‘00)

    

I   Revenue from Operations
 Interest Income 18 23,128 43,683
 Profit from Speculative Business 19 11 —
 Net Gain on Fair Value Changes  —20  42,669
II Other Incomes 2  1 61,006 4,026

III Total Income (I+II)  84,145 90,378
IV  EXPENSES
 Finance Cost 2  2 2,779 3,478
 Net Loss on Fair Value Changes 20 71,737 —
 Impairemant on Financial Instruments 23 12,730 —
 Employee Benefit Expenses  114 28,450 5,225
 Depreciation and Amortization 2  1105 212 
 Other Expenses 2  6 17,579 7,753

   1,33,488 26,566Total Expenses
V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary
 items and taxes (III-IV)  (49,343) 63,811
VI Exceptional Items  — —

VII Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and taxes (V-VI) (49,343) 63,811
VIII Extraordinary Items  — —

IX Profit/(Loss) before tax (VII-VIII)  (49,343) 63,811
X Tax Expenses:
 (1) Current Tax 2  — ( )7  14,255
 (2) Deferred Tax 2  (3)7 19,521 
 (3) Income Tax for earlier year 2  —7 (43) 
XI Profit/(Loss) for the period from Continuing
 Operations (VII-VIII)  (29,864) 49,553
XII Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations  — —
XIII Tax Expense of discontinuing operation  — —
XIV Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations
 (after tax) (XII-XIII)  — —

XV Profit/(Loss) for the period (XI+XIV)  (29,864) 49,553
XVI Other Comprehensive Income
 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  — —
 Income Tax relating to items that will not be
  reclassfied to profit or loss  — —
   Total (A) — —
    
 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  — —
 Income Tax relating to items that will be
  reclassfied to profit or loss  — —
   Total (B) — —
 Other Comprehensive Income (A+B)  — —
XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XV+XVI)  (29,864) 49,553
XVIII Earnings per Equity Share:
 (1) Basic 2  8 (0.70) 1.17
 (2) Diluted 2  8 (0.70) 1.17
General Information & Significant Accounting policies  1- 3 
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts
As per our Report of even date
For, M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants     
F 0323929ERN No. 
( ) artnerMANISH KUMAR KOTHARI  P
M 59513embership No. 0
Date : Place: Kolkata15.05.2024 
UDIN: 24059513BKCZNK8741

Note No.
For the

Year ended
31.03.2023

For the
Year ended
31.03.2024
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For & on Behalf of the Board
 (DIN-02984121)Anuj Agarwal

 (DIN-10042485)Anup Chattopadhyay
Sd/-

Director

Poonam Bathwal
Sd/-

Company Secretary
Jaswinder Singh

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

A. Net Cash from Operational Activities

 Net Profit before Taxes  (49,343) 63,811

 Adjustments

 Depreciation & Amortisation 110 212 

 Net (Gain)/loss on sale of Investments (4,026) (60,556) 

 Dividend Income from Investments  (450) —

 Interest Income from Investments  (6,861) —

 Net Gain/(Loss) arising on financial instruments 

        measured at FV through P/L  (94,379) —

 Provision for Contingencies (961) (202) 

 Balance Written Off — 32  

 Operating Profit/(Loss) before change in Working Capital 58,967 (2,11,578) 

 Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

 Trade receivables (81,661) 77,404 

 Loans   3,84,201 80,612 

 Other Financial assets (4,00,000) 4,00,000 

 Other Non-Financial Assets (3,143) 3,545 

 Adjustments for increase /(decrease) in operating liabilities:  

 Other Financial Liabilities (360)& Non Financial  495 

   (41,996) 3,50,478 

 Net income tax (paid)/refunds (9,609) (12,638) 

 Net Cash from Operating Activities A (51,604 3,37,840 )

B.  Cash Flow from Investing Activities

 Purchase of  Investments (4,00,000) (5,39,985) 

 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment  (361) —

 Dividend Income from Investments  450 —

 Interest Income from Investments  6,861 —

 Sale proceeds from Fixed Deposits — 42,500  

 Proceeds from sale of Investments 4,04,026 1,96,609 

 Cash Flow from Investing Activities B 46,526 (3,36,426) 

(64)

2023-24
Amount (Rs.)

2022-23
Amount (Rs.)

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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C. s  Cash Flow from Financing Activitie

 Cash Flow from Financial Activities C — —

 Net Increase in Cash & Cash equivalent  (A+B+C) (5,078) 1,414 

 Cash & Cash equivalent (Opening Balance)  32,45027,372 

 Cash & Cash Equivalent (Closing Balance)  27,37228,785 

Notes to Cash Flow Statement

1. Previous year's figures have re-grouped & re-cast wherever necessary

2. Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of year

-Balances in Current Account  26,55728,256 

-Cash In Hand  814529 

    27,37228,785 

Notes
 1. During the financial year 1997-98, a sum of Rs. 25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Lacs only) 

had been fraudulently withdrawn from Punjab & Sind Bank, New Tangra Road Branch, Kolkata. 
The matter is under investigation by authorities. The closing balance as per books is Rs. 
25,02,195/-. The same has been included in Cash & Cash Equivalents.

 2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under “Indirect Method”.

For, M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
F 0323929ERN No. 
( )MANISH KUMAR KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No. 059513
Date : 15.05.2024
Place: Kolkata
U 24059513BKCZNK8741DIN: 

2023-24
Amount (Rs.)

2022-23
Amount (Rs.)

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

For & on Behalf of the Board
 (DIN-02984121)Anuj Agarwal

 (DIN-10042485)Anup Chattopadhyay
Sd/-

Director
Poonam Bathwal

Sd/-
Company Secretary
Jaswinder Singh

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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Statement of changes in equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

A) Equity Share Capital

1) As on 31/03/2024
Balance as on 31/03.2023 4,59,68,648
Change in equity due to prior period errors —
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 4,59,68,648
Changes in equity share capital during the year —
Balance as on 31/03/2024 4,59,68,648

2) As on 31/03/2023
Balance as on 31/03/2022 45,968,648
Change in equity due to prior period errors —
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 4,59,68,648
Changes in equity share capital during the year —
Balance as on 31/03/2023 4,59,68,648

B) Other Equity
1) As on 31/03/2024
 Particulars  Reserves & Surplus
  Statutory Reserves    Retained Earnings Total
Balance as on 31/03/202  3 38,848 92,322 1,31,169 
Profit/(Loss) for the year —  (29,864) (29,864)
Excess Provision written back — — —
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earnings — — —   
Balance as on 31/03/202 38,848 4 62,458 1,01,305 

2) As on 31/03/2023

 Particulars  Reserves & Surplus

  Statutory Reserves    Retained Earnings Total
Balance as on 01/04/202  2 28,937 50,428 79,365 
Profit/(Loss) for the year —  49,533 49,533
Excess Provision written back — 2,251 2,251
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earnings —  9,911 (9,911) 
Balance as on 31/03/202  3 38,848 92,322 1,31,169 
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Nature and Purpose of Reserves
a) Retained Earnings
This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on Balance Sheet 
Date.
b) Statutory Reserve
This reserve is created in compliance with section - 451C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
at the rate of 20% of the profit after tax of the year.

For, M. K. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0323929E
( )MANISH KUMAR KOTHARI
Partner
Membership No. 059513
Date : 15.05.2024
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 24059513BKCZNK8741
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For & on Behalf of the Board
 (DIN-02984121)Anuj Agarwal

 (DIN-10042485)Anup Chattopadhyay
Sd/-

Director
Poonam Bathwal

Sd/-
Company Secretary
Jaswinder Singh

Sd/-
C.F.O.
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1 General Information
 The Company is a registered non-banking finance company engaged in the business of 

providing finance. The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non-
Banking Finance Co.(NBFC). The Company is primarily engaged in  providing Business 
Loans, and is also engaged in Trading and  Investment  in Shares & Securities.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

a. Statement of Compliance
 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity 

are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). The statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and 
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. The Balance 
Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in 
Equity are together referred as the Financial statement of the Company.

 The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the 
Companies  (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under Section 133 of Act and 
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (’Ind AS’)

b. Functional and Presentation Currency
 Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. All amounts have been 

presented in hundreds of Indian Rupees,  except share data and as otherwise stated.

c. Basis of Measurement
 The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain 

financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

d. Use of Estimates and Judgement
 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards 

(’Ind AS’) requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These 
estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the year. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. The Management believes that the estimates used in  
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Some of the areas 
involving significant estimation/judgement are determination of Expected Credit Loss, fair 
valuation of Investments, Income Taxes, share based payments and employee benefits.
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e. Measurement of Fair Value
 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement 

of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are 
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows:

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 

assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
 Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs).

3.  ccounting oliciesMaterial A P

a Revenue Recognition
 
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable 
certainty of its recovery.

 I) Interest
 Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective 

interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the 
Financial Asset, or the ammortised cost of the financial liability.

 In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross 
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or to the amortised cost 
of the liability.

 ii) Dividend Income 
 Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit & loss on the date on which the 

Company’s right to receive payment is established.

b. Property, Plant & Equipment (”PPE”)
 
 PPE held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation an  d

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
 Cost of an item of property, plant & equipment comprises purchase price, including import 

duties and non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and service tax), after deducting trade 
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discounts and rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working 
condition for its intended use.

 Any gain/loss on disposal of an item of property, plany and equipment is recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.

c. Depreciation and Ammortisation

 Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of assets 
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives specified in Schedule II to the 
Act. depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to 
the period of use.

 Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
end and adjusted if necessary, for each reporting period.

d. Financial Assets

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified and measured 
based on the entity’s business model for managing financial asset and contractual cash flow 
charecteristics of financial asset at:

 - Those measured at Ammortised Cost
 - Those measured at Fair Value through Other Compre hensive Income (FVTOCI)
 - Those measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

 I) Financial Assets at Ammortised Cost

 Includes assets that are held within a business model where objective is to hold financial 
assets to collect contractual cash flows and contractual terms gives rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount 
outstanding.

 These assets are measured subsequently at ammortised cost using the effective interest 
method, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, if any and impairment are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

 ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

 Includes assets that are held within a business model where objective is both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets along with contractual terms giving rise 
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on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in 
other comprehensive income changes in fair value of an investment in any equity 
instrument that is not held for trading. This selection is made on instrument-by -instrument 
basis.

 Dividends are recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss unless it clearly 
represents a recovery of part of cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss

 The fair values of financial assets in this catagory are determined by reference to active 
market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

 iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

 Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are designated at FVTPL upon 
initial recognition and financial assets that are not measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI. 
All derivative financial instruments fall into this catagory, except for those designated and 
effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements apply. 
Assets in this catagory are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

 The fair values of financial assets in this catagory are determined by reference to active 
market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists..

e. Financial Liabilities

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as fnancial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss or at amortised cost. The Company’s financial liabilities include 
borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

 All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are 
reported in the statement of profit and loss are included within finance costs or finance 
income.

f. Employee Benefit Expense

 The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange 
for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees 
render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated 
absences which are expected to occure within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related service.
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g. Income Taxes

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss except when they relate to items that are recognised 
outside statement of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity), in which case tax is also recognised outside statement of profit and loss.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of 
temporary difference between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax 
credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax 
losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilised.

 The Corporation provides for current tax liabilities at the best estimate that is expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities where an outflow is probable.

h. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

 I) Provisions
 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 

constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pretax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

 ii) Contingent Liabilities
 Whenever there is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed only by the occurance or non-occurance of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from 
past events but is not recognised because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (b) the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are c nsidered as contingent o
liability..

 iii) Contingent Assets
 The Company does not recognise contingent assets. These are assessed continually to 

ensure that the developments are appropriately disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements.
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I) Earnings per Share 
 
 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, bonus elements in a rights 
issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

j) Impairement

 Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan 
impairment on completion of the Group’s internal processes and when the Group concludes 
that there is no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. For loans 
that are individually assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a 
case by case basis. A writeoff constitutes a de-recognition event. The Group has a right to 
apply enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

k) Cash and Cash Equivalent and Cash Flows Statement
 
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other 

short term, highly liquid investments maturing within three months from the date of 
acquisition and which are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to only an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before 
extraordnary items and tax is appropriately classified for the effects of transactions of non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future receipts or payments. In cash 
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks in 
current accounts and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturitis of 
three months or less.

k) Segment Reporting

 The Company’s main business is providing finance by way of loans in India. All other 
activities of the Company revolve around the main business. This in the context of Ind AS 
108 “Operating Segments” reporting is considered to constitute one reportable segment.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

4. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT
 At ammortised cost
 Cash on Hand   529 814
 (As certified by the management)

 Balance with Bank

   - Current Account  28,256 26,557

     28,785 27,372
 During the financial year 1997-98, a sum of Rs. 2,500,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Lacs 

only) had been fraudulently withdrawn from Punjab & Sind Bank Ltd., New Tangra Road 
Branch, Kolkata. The matter is under investigation by authorities. The closing balance as 
per the book is Rs. 2,502,195/-.

5. RECEIVABLES
 (I) Trade Receivables
 Considered Good-Unsecured   4,256 81,661
 Less:-Impairement Loss Allowance   — —
     4,256 81,661
 Debtors balances are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.
Trade Receivable Aging Schedule - Current, outstanding as on 31/03/2024
 Particulars < 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
  months - 1 year   3 years

I) Undisputed Trade
    Receivable - 
    Considered Good  — — — — 4,256 4,256

Trade Receivable Aging Schedule - Current, outstanding as on 31/03/2023
 Particulars < 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
  months - 1 year   3 years
I)  Undisputed Trade
    Receivable - 
    Considered Good  — — — — 81,661 81,661

As at
31.03.2024

As at
31.03.2023
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6. LOANS
 (Unsecured, Repayable on demand, at amortised cost)
 Loans in India, to others   
 - Loan to Private Sector  85,612 5,000 
      

   5,000 85,612

7 INVESTMENTS. 
 (Investments in India, At Fair Value 
       through Profit & Loss account
 Investment in Equity Instruments   2,96,640 —
 Government Securities   2,01,666 —
     4,98,306 —
   No. of Shares/Units
 Details of Other Investments 2023-24 2022-23
 Quoted Investments in 
      Equity Instruments
 - Texmaco Rail & 
      Engineering Ltd (FV 1) 180000  2,96,640 — —
 Unquoted Investment in
     Government Securities
 - 7.54% GOI Bond (FV 100) 190000  2,01,666 — —

8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
 At ammortised Cost
   Security Deposit  1,560 1,560
 Margin Money held with broker  —  4,00,000
     
     1,560 4,01,560

As at
31.03.2024

As at
31.03.2023

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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9. CURRENT TAX ASSET 
 Balance with Government Authority  
   8,889(Tax Deducted at source & Self Assessment Tax)  7,229 
      

   7,229 8,889
10. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (Net)
 Opening Balance  41 38 
 Recognized in profit & loss during the year (3) 19,521 
 Closing Balance    

   19,559 38

 Movement of Deferred Tax Assets (Liability)
  
  Particulars  Opening Profit/Loss OCI Total Closing
         Balance    Balance
  As on 31/03/24
 
 Items on Timing Difference
 Property, Plant & Equipment  —  38 (9) (9) 29 
 Investments measured at Fair Value  (16,525)  (16,525) (16,525)— —
 Carried forward Business Loss  36,056  36,056 36,056— —
  Net Deffered Tax Assets 38 19,521 v 19,521 19,559
  
  As on 31/03/2023
 Items on Timing Difference
 Prop rty, Plant & Equipment  (3) — (3) e 41 38

As at
31.03.2024

As at
31.03.2023

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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12. OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit  — 3,545  
    — 3,545  
13. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 Other Payables  295 (Audit Fees and other payables)  790 
    295 790 
14. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Net)
 Provision for Tax  — 14,255  
    — 14,255  
15. PROVISIONS
 Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets 214 13 
    214 13 

16. SHARE CAPITAL
 Authorised Share Capital
 78 7,85  ,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  ,000 5,35,000
     5,000 5,35,000(P.Y. 53,50,000 Equity) 7,8  
 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
 42,47,300 Equity Shares
  (P.Y. 42,47,300) of Rs. 10/- each    4 24 73, , 0 4,24,730
  fully paid up in cash
 Add:- Share Forfeiture   34,956 34,956
  (Amount originally paid up)
     4,59,686 4,59,686
 Reconciliation of No. of Shares outstanding
 At the beginning of the year   42,473 42,473
 Forfeited during the year   — —
 At the end of the year   42,473 42,473
 Note:-8,04,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 
  each forfeited on 12th August 2016

As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2024

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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   31.03.202   31.03.2024 3
   Share % Share %List of Shareholders holding more than
    5% of shares
 Raj Kumar Agarwal 17,839 42% 17,839 42%
 Anuj Agarwal 10,466 2 %  %5 10,466 25
 
 
 Shareholding of Promoters
  
   Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
   as on 31/03/202  as on 31/03/2024 3
 S. No. Promoter Name No. of  % of Total No. of  % of Total % Change 

 Shares Shares Shares Shares  during
       the year
 1 Raj Kr. Agarwal 17,839 42% 17,839 42% 0%
 2 Anuj Agarwal 10,466 25%  % %10,466 25 0
 
 

17. OTHER EQUITY
   Statutory Reserve
 Opening Balance 32,533 42,444 

 Addition during the year — 9,911  

   (a) 42,444 42,444

 Retained Earnings
 Opening Balance  50,42692,320 
 Addition during the year  49,553(29,864) 
 Less:- Transfer to Statutory Reserve — (9,911)  
 Less: Excess provision Written Back — 2,251  
   (b) 92,32062,456 
   Total (a+b) 1,34,767 1,04,900 

As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2024

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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18. INTEREST INCOME
 On financial Assets measured at Ammortised Cost
  4,425 Interest on Loans 38,620
 Interest on Income Tax Refund — 4  
 Interest on Margin Money  11,842 —
 Interest Income from Investments  6,861 —
 Interest on Fixed Deposit — 5,059  
   43,683 23,128 

19. PROFIT FROM SPECULATIVE BUSINESS

 Share Speculation  11 —

    11 —

20. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
 Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through 
        Profit/Loss account  
 - On Trading Portfolio
  /(Loss)  (1,66,116)  Derivative Profit  42,669
    Investments Profit/(Loss)  94,379  —
    42,669(71,737) 
 Fair Value Changes:
  Realised  (1,66,116) 42,669
  Unrealised  94,379 —
    (71,737) 42,669

.
2 . OTHER INCOMES1
  —Dividend  450 
  on sale of Investments 4,026Net Gain Current  60,556 

    4,02661,006 

As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2024

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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2 . FINANCE COST2
 On Financial Liabilities measured at Ammortised Cost
 on borrowings 2,353 Interest   3,478
 Other Interest Expense  426 —

    3,4782,779 

2 . 3 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 On Loans at ammortised cost
 Balance written off  12,730 —

    12,730  —

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
 Salary & Bonus  3,1501,000 
 Directors Remuneration   12,075(refer note no. 2 )9 27,450 
    15,22528,450 

25 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
 Depreciation  110212 
    110212 

As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2024

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)
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As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2024

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

2 . 6 OTHER EXPENSES
    295Payment to Auditors 944 (Refer Note 2 .1)6
 Advertisement Expenses  376206 
 Rent   1,0202,400 
 Rates & Taxes   68(Refer Note 2 .2)6 134 
 Legal & Professional Charges  4503,152 
 Contingent Provision for Standard Assets  (961)(202) 
 Power & Fuel  — 211 
 Repair & Maintenance  — 93
 Balance Written off  — 32
 Depository & Registr  Expenses  321ar 1,093 
 Donation & Subscription  — —
 Postage & Telegram  235320 
 Printing & Stationary  421494 
 Travelling & Conveyance  211139 
 General Expenses  178157 
 Processing Fee  248 —
 Listing Fees  3,8357,670 
 Miscellaneous Expenses  969825 
    7,75317,579 

2 .1 6 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS
 Statutory Audit Fees  295590 
 Fees for Limited Review  354 —

    295944 
2 .2. RENT, RATES & TAXES6
 Professional Tax  25 25
 Trade License  43109 
    68134 
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As at
31.03.2023

As at
31.03.2024

(Amount in Rs. ‘00)

2 . 7 INCOME TAX
 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
 Current Tax  — (14,255) 
 Deferred Tax  (3)19,521 
 Tax for earlier years  —(43) 
    19,479 (14,258)

 Reconciliation of effective Tax rate
   4 3Particulars As on 31/03/202  As on 31/03/202
   % Amount % Amount
 Profit before Tax   (49,343)  63,811
 Tax using Company’s Domestic Tax Rate % — 26%0   16,591
 Effect of:
 - Expenses not deductible 0% — %0  68
 - Income which are taxed at different rates 0% — 0% —
 - Expenses allowed as deduction 0% — %0  281
 - MAT Credit entitlement % — %0 -3  (2,123)
 - Taxable Timing difference %  0%-40 19,521  3
 -Tax paid for earlier years 0%  0% —(43)
  Effective Tax Rate/tax expense %  2 %-39 19,479 2  14,258
 
2 . EARNINGS PER SHARE8
 Profit/(Loss) after Tax attributable to equity shareholders 49,553(29,864) 
 Weighted Average no. of shares Outstanding 42,473 42,473
 Weighted Average no. of shares Outstanding including 42,473 42,473
      potential equity shares [Diluted]  
 Basic Earning per Share (Rs.)  (0.70) 1.17
 Diluted Earning per Share (Rs.)  1.17(0.70) 
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2 . Schedule to the Balance Sheet of Non-deposit taking Non-Systemically Important 9
Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

                                   (Amount in ‘000)Particulars
 Liabilities side :
(1) Loans and advances availed by the Non banking 
 financial company inclusiveof interest accrued thereon but not paid:  
    Amount Amount
     outstanding overdue
 (a) Debentures : Secured  NIL NIL
                                   : Unsecured  NIL NIL
  (other than falling within the
  meaning of public deposits*)
 (b) Deferred Credits  NIL NIL
 (c) Term Loans  NIL NIL
 (d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing  NIL NIL
 (e) Commercial Paper  NIL NIL
 (f) Public Deposits*  NIL NIL
 (g) Other Loans (Loan from related parties)  NIL NIL
 * Please see Note 1 below
(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public
 deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon
 but not paid):
 (a) In the form of Unsecured debentures  NIL NIL
 (b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e.
  debentures where there is a shortfall in the
  value of security  NIL NIL
 (c) Other public deposits  NIL NIL
 * Please see Note 1 below 
 Assets side :  Amount outstanding
(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
 receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
  (a) Secured   NIL
 (b) Unsecured    500
(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
 other assets counting towards asset financial activities  NIL
 (i)  Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
  (a) Financial lease   NIL
  (b) Operating lease    NIL
 (ii)  Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
  (a)  Assets on hire   NIL 
  (b)  Repossessed Assets   NIL
 (iii)  Other loans counting towards asset financing activities: 
  (a)  Loans where assets have been repossessed  NIL
  (b)  Loans other than (a) above    NIL
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(5) Break-up of Investments :
 Current Investments :
 1. Quoted :
 (i)  Shares : (a)  Equity   29664
                      (b) Preference   NIL
 (ii)  Debentures and Bonds   NIL
 (iii) Units of mutual funds   NIL
 (iv)  Government Securities   20167
 (v)  Others (please specify)   NIL
 2. Unquoted :
 (i)  Shares : (a) Equity   NIL
    (b) Preference   NIL
 (ii)  Debentures and Bonds   NIL
 (iii) Units of mutual funds   NIL
 (iv)  Government Securities   NIL
 (v)  Others (please specify)   NIL
 Long Term investments :
 1. Quoted :
 (i) Share : (a) Equity   NIL
    (b) Preference   NIL
 (ii) Debentures and Bonds   NIL
 (iii) Units of mutual funds   NIL
 (iv) Government Securities   NIL
 (v) Others (Please specify)   NIL
 2. Unquoted :
 (i) Shares : (a) Equity   NIL
    (b) Preference   NIL
 (ii) Debentures and Bonds   NIL
 (iii) Units of mutual funds   NIL
 (iv) Government Securities   NIL
 (v)  Others (Please specify)   NIL
(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
 Please see Note 2 below   
 Category Amount net of provisions         
      Secured Unsecured Total  
   1. Related Parties ** Nil Nil Nil
  (a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil 
  (b)   Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil
  (c) Other related parties  Nil Nil Nil
 2.  Other than related parties Nil  500 500
 1.3    Nil  Total 500 500
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(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and 
securities (both quoted and unquoted):

 Please see note 3 below  
 Category   Market Value / Break Book Value
      up or fair value or (Net of
      NAV  Provisions)
 1. Related Parties **   
  (a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL 
  (b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL
  (c)  Other related parties  NIL NIL 
 2.  Other than related parties  49,831 40,393
              Total   49,831 40,393

 ** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Please see Note 3)

(8) Other information
    Particulars    Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets  NIL  
   (a) Related parties   NIL 
         (b)  Other than related parties   NIL  
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets   NIL 
   (a) Related parties  NIL 
   (b)  Other than related parties  NIL 
 (iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt   NIL 

Notes :

1. As defined in Point xxv of Paragraph 3 of Chapter - II of these Directions.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions, 
 
3. All notified Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable 

including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in 
satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break 
up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments sh  be disclosed irrespective of all
whether they are classified as long term (amortised cost in the case of Ind AS) or current 
(fair value in the case of Ind AS) in (5) above.
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(B) Disclosure requirement under Scale Based Regulations for NBFCs
       Amount in Rs. ‘000
       FY 202  FY 2023-24 2-23
 
 (I). Exposure
  1. Exposure in Real Estate Sector  Nil Nil

  2. Exposure to Capital Markets
   Direct Investment in Equity Shares, Convertible Bonds
   Convertible Debentures, Unit of Equity Oriented
   Mutual Funds   —29,664
    Total Exposure to Capital Markets  —29,664

  3. Sector Exposure
   a. Services
    - Other Services
     Total Exposure   500 8,561
     Gross NPA  — —
     Percentage of Gross NPA to total exposure
        in the sector  — —
    Total of    Services 500 8,561
  4. Intra-Group Exposures
   Total amount of intra-group loan exposure  — —
   Total amount of Top 20 Intra-group loan exposure  — —
   Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposures
      of the NBFC on borrowers  0.00% 0.00%
  5. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure NA NA

   (ii) Related Party Disclosure
   Please refer Note No. 23 of the Notes to Accounts.
  (iii) Disclosure of Complaints
  1. Summary information on complaints received by
     NBFCs from customers and from Office
     of Ombudsman  Nil Nil
  2. Top Five grounds of complaints received by the
     NBFCs from Customers  Nil Nil
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30. Related Party Disclosure
 Related Parties with whom transactions have been entered during the year:

Name of Related Party Relation Nature of transaction Amount(Rs.) Amount(Rs.)    

Anuj Agarwal Key Management Remuneration 4,00024,000 
   Personnel
Poonam Bathwal Key Management Remuneration 753,450 
   Personnel
Anup Chattopadhyay Key Management   —Director Sitting fees 1,000 
   Personnel
Laxmi Kant Jajodia Key Management   —Director Sitting Fees 1,000 
   Personnel
Jaswinder Singh* No Transaction  Key Management   — —
   Personnel
   Personnel
Basant Kumar Agarwal* Key Management Remuneration — 1,125 
   Personnel
Anuj Agarwal Key Management  —Loan Taken 1,52,000 
  Interest on Loan 2,010   Personnel —
    Loan Repaid 1,54,010 —
    Closing Balance  — —
Dhanshree Enclave  Enterprises where  Office Rent Paid 2,400 —
Pvt Ltd  KMP or their relatives  
   are interested 

  
  

Note:
* Mr. Jaswinder Singh appointed as a CFO from 03.01.2024
* Mr. Basant Kumar Agarwal ceased to be a CFO from 13.02.2024
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31 Additional Regulatory Requirements
 I. The Company does not possess any immovable property whose title deeds are not held  in the 

name of Company.
 ii. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment.
 iii. No Loans or Advances have been granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the Related 

Party, either jointly or severally with any other person.
 iv. The Company does not have any Capital-Work-in-Progress.
 v. The Company does not have any Intangible Assets under Development.
 vi. No Proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 

Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made 
thereunder.

 vii. The Company has no borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions on the basis of 
Security of Current Assets.

 viii. The Company is not declared as a Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institutions or 
other Lender.

 ix. The Company has no transactions with companies Struck off under Section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

 x. The Company does not have any Charges/Satisfaction thereof which are yet to be registered 
with Registrar of Companies beyond the Statutory Period.

 xi. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 
Section 2 of the Act read with rules.

 xii. Ratios
 
      S.No. Ratio Numerator Denominator 202 202 Change %3-24 2-23 
 
 I. Capital to risk
  weighted asset Total Equity Risk Weighted Asset* 1.  1.  %11 04 6
  ratio (CRAR)
 
 ii. Tier I CRAR Tier I Capital* Risk Weighted Asset* 1.  1.  %07 04 2
 
 iii. Tier II CRAR Tier II Capital Risk Weighted Asset* 0.00 0.00 0%
 
 iv. Liquidity  Total High Quality Total Net Cash % % %1846 88 2000
  Coverage** Liquid Assets Outflow over the
    next 30 days*
 * As per Master Direction issued by RBI.
 ** The Liquidity Coverage Ratio has increased due to decrease in Net Cash Outflows.
 xiii. No Scheme of Arrangement has been proposed by the Competent Authority in terms of 

Section 230 to Section 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.
 xiv. A. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or 
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entities, including foreign entities (”Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company (”Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

  B. No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including 
foreign entities (”Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(”Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

 xv. The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the Books of Accounts that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the Tax Assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. there are no Previously Unrecorded Income and related assets that 
have been recorded in the Books of Accounts during the year.

 xvi. The Company is not covered under Section 135 of the Companies Act.
 xvii. The Company has not traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial 

Year.
3 . Segment Reporting2
 The Company’s main business is providing finance by way of loans in India. All other activities of 

the Company revolve around the main business. As such, there are no separate reportable 
segments, as per the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on “Segment Reporting”.

3 . Financial Risk Management3
 The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to 

minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, the company has risk 
management policies as described below :-

 
 I) Credit Risk
  Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occure from the failure of any party to abide by the 

terms and conditions of any contract, principally the failure to make required payments of 
amounts due to the Company. In it’s lending operations, the Company is principally exposed 
to credit risk.

  The Board of Directors periodically review its Credit Risks and oversee the Loan Sanction 
Process to eliminate the risk of loss due to Credit Risk

 
 ii) Liquidity Risk
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the 

obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 
financial asset. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position 
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining 
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial 
assets and liabilities.
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 Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities is as :follows
 
 As at 31st March 2024
 
     Particulars Less than 1-5 Year 5+ Year Total
  1 Year
 Borrowing _ _ _ 0
 Trade Payable _ _ _ 0
 Other Financial Liability  - - 790 790

 As at 31st March 2023
     Particulars Less than 1-5 Year 5+ Year Total
  1 Year
 Borrowing _ _ _ 0
 Trade Payable _ _ _ 0
 Other Financial Liability  - - 295 295

 iii) Market Risk
  Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may 

result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial 
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency 
exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect 
market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive 
financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, 
payables and borrowings. The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial 
instruments and specifically to interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result 
from both its operating and investing activities.

 
  -  : Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a Interest rate risk

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
Company does not have significant exposure to Long Term Borrowings. So the Company  
does not have a significant cash flow interest rate risk.

  : Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Foreign Currency Risk
flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The 
Company does not face any Foreign Currency Risk.

 
  - : The Company generally invests in listed and unlisted equity Equity Price Risk

instruments. All investments in equity portfolio are reviewed and approved by the Board of 
Directors. As at the reporting date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was 
Rs.  (March 31, 202 : Rs. )2,96,640.40 3 in ‘00
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  -  : The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument Other Price Risk
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate 
risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual 
financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments 
traded in the market. All exposures in derivative portfolio are reviewed and approved by the 
board of directors. As at the reporting date, the exposure in derivative instruments at fair 
value was Rs 0 (March 31, 202 : Rs 0)3

3 . Fair Value Measurement4
 Accounting classification and Fair Values
 Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities, including their levels in fair 

value hierarchy, are as follows:

     As on 31/03/202 As on 31/03/2024 3
 
 Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Ammortised FVTPL FVTOCI Ammortised      
                    Cost Cost
         Financial Assets
 Cash & Cash Equivalent - - 2  - - 8,785 27,372
 Receivables - -  - - 4,256  81,661
 Loans - -  - -5,000  85,612
 Current Investment 4,98,306     - - - - -
 Other Financial Assets - - 1,560 - - 1,560 4,0
                        Total 4,98,306 39,602  5,96,204 -  - -
 Financial Liabilities
 Other Financial Liabilities - -  - -790  295
                        Total - -  - -790 295 
   
            As on 31/03/202               As on 31/03/2024 3
       Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
         Financial Assets
 Cash & Cash Equivalent - -  - - 28,785 27,372
 Bank balance other than   - - - - - -
      cash & cash equivalent
 Receivables - -  - -4,256  81,661
 Loans - -  - -5,000  85,612
 Current Investment 2,96,640 2,01,666    - - - -
 Other Financial Assets - - 1,560 - - 4,01,560
                       Total    - -2,96,640 2,01,666  39,602 5 96,204,
 Financial Liabilities
 Other Financial Liabilities - -  - -790  295
                      Total - -  - -790 295 
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